TIME WARNER INC. Form DEF 14A December 01, 2008

(5) Total fee paid:

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 SCHEDULE 14A

# Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

File	ed by the Registrant ý ed by a Party other than the Registrant o eck the appropriate box:
0	Preliminary Proxy Statement
o	Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
ý	Definitive Proxy Statement
o	Definitive Additional Materials
o	Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12  Time Warner Inc.
Pay ý	(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter) (Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)  ment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):  No fee required.
О	Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.  (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (see forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
	(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

O	ree paid previously with premimary materials.
O	Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.  (1) Amount Previously Paid:
	(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
	(3) Filing Party:
	(4) Date Filed:

#### **Table of Contents**

December 1, 2008

#### Dear Fellow Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend a Special Meeting of Stockholders of Time Warner Inc., which will be held on Friday, January 16, 2009, at 8:30 a.m. (Eastern time) at the Time Warner Conference Center, One Time Warner Center, 10<sup>th</sup> Floor, New York, NY 10019-8016. If you are unable to attend the Special Meeting in person, you may hear the audiocast live on the Internet at www.timewarner.com/specialmeetingmaterials.

The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted rules that permit us to furnish proxy materials over the Internet rather than in paper form. Accordingly, we are sending a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to most of our stockholders, which will reduce our printing and mailing costs and the environmental impact of the proxy materials. A paper copy of our proxy materials may be requested through one of the methods described in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials.

Details of the business to be presented at the Special Meeting can be found in the attached Notice of Special Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement. As a stockholder, you will be asked to vote on a proposal to authorize the Board of Directors to effect, in its discretion, a reverse stock split of Time Warner Common Stock at a reverse stock split ratio of either 1-for-2 or 1-for-3, as determined by the Board of Directors, and to approve a corresponding amendment to Time Warner s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect the reverse stock split and to reduce proportionately the total number of shares of Common Stock and Series Common Stock that Time Warner is authorized to issue.

The proposal to authorize a reverse stock split is based on the Company s expectation that, following the previously announced separation of Time Warner Cable Inc. from the Company, the market price and trading ranges for the Time Warner Common Stock may be significantly lower than the current market price and trading ranges due to the fact that the Company will have distributed all of its shares in Time Warner Cable to the Company s stockholders. The Board of Directors believes that effecting a reverse stock split, resulting in fewer shares of the Time Warner Common Stock being outstanding, is likely to increase the market price and improve the marketability and liquidity of the Time Warner Common Stock. We encourage you to vote on the proposal described in the attached Notice of Special Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement. The Board of Directors recommends that you vote **FOR** this proposal.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Special Meeting in person, your vote is important. After reading the attached Notice of Special Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement, please promptly submit your proxy by telephone, Internet or mail. If you submit your proxy over the Internet, you will have the opportunity to agree to receive future stockholder documents electronically via email, and we encourage you to do so. If you have received a paper copy of the proxy materials and choose to vote on this proposal by traditional proxy or voting instruction card, please sign, date and mail the card in the enclosed pre-addressed reply envelope.

We look forward to greeting those of you who are able to attend the Special Meeting.

Sincerely,

Richard D. Parsons Chairman of the Board Jeffrey L. Bewkes
President and Chief Executive Officer

## YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. PLEASE PROMPTLY SUBMIT YOUR PROXY BY TELEPHONE, INTERNET OR MAIL.

Time Warner Inc.
One Time Warner Center
New York, NY 10019-8016

### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JANUARY 16, 2009

The Special Meeting of Stockholders of Time Warner Inc. (the Company ) (the Special Meeting ) will be held on Friday, January 16, 2009, at 8:30 a.m. (Eastern time). The meeting will take place at:

Time Warner Conference Center One Time Warner Center, 10th Floor New York, NY 10019-8016

(enter through the Time Warner Inc. corporate headquarters entrance on West 58th Street between 8th and 9th Avenues)

The purposes of the Special Meeting are:

- (a) To authorize the Board of Directors to effect, in its discretion, a reverse stock split of the outstanding and treasury Common Stock of Time Warner, at a reverse stock split ratio of either 1-for-2 or 1-for-3, as determined by the Board of Directors; and
- (b) To approve a corresponding amendment to the Company s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect the reverse stock split and to reduce proportionately the total number of shares of Common Stock and shares of Series Common Stock that Time Warner is authorized to issue, subject to the Board of Directors authority to abandon such amendment.

The close of business on November 20, 2008, is the record date for determining stockholders entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. Only holders of Time Warner Common Stock as of the record date are entitled to vote on the proposal described in this Notice of Special Meeting of Stockholders and the accompanying Proxy Statement.

You can vote your shares using one of the following methods:

If you received a paper copy of the proxy materials, follow the instructions on the proxy card or voting instruction card and submit your proxy (i) via the Internet, (ii) by telephone or (iii) by completing and signing the written proxy card or voting instruction card and returning it in the enclosed pre-addressed reply envelope;

If you received a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, submit your proxy via the Internet using the instructions included in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials; or

Attend and vote at the Special Meeting.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Special Meeting in person, please promptly submit your proxy by telephone, Internet or mail by following the instructions found on your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy

Materials, proxy card or voting instruction card. Any holder of record who is present at the Special Meeting may vote in person instead of by proxy, thereby canceling any previous proxy. Please note that if your shares are held through a bank or brokerage account, you will need to contact your bank or broker to obtain a written legal proxy from the record holder of your shares in order to vote at the Special Meeting.

i

### **Table of Contents**

If you are planning to attend the Special Meeting in person, because of security procedures, **you will need to register in advance to gain admission to the Special Meeting**. You can register in advance by calling 866-940-8693 by Wednesday, January 14, 2009. In addition to registering in advance, **you will be required to present government-issued photo identification** (e.g., driver s license or passport) to enter the Time Warner Conference Center on the day of the Special Meeting. Inspection of vehicles, packages and bags, among other measures, may be employed to enhance the security of those attending the Special Meeting. These procedures may require additional time. Please plan accordingly. The Special Meeting will start promptly at 8:30 a.m. (Eastern time). To avoid disruption, admission may be limited once the meeting begins.

Time Warner Inc.

Paul F. Washington *Corporate Secretary* 

December 1, 2008

ii

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROXY STATEMENT	1
Recommendation of the Board of Directors	1
Submitting Your Proxy	1
INFORMATION ABOUT THIS PROXY STATEMENT AND THE SPECIAL MEETING	2
Questions and Answers about Voting Your Time Warner Common Stock	2
THE PROPOSAL	7
Background	7
Purpose of the Reverse Stock Split	7
Board Discretion to Implement the Reverse Stock Split	8
Certain Risks Associated with the Reverse Stock Split	8
Impact of the Proposed Reverse Stock Split If Implemented	8
<u>Fractional Shares</u>	9
Effect on Registered and Beneficial Stockholders	10
Effect on Registered Book-Entry Stockholders	10
Effect on Registered Certificated Shares	10
Accounting Consequences	11
No Appraisal Rights	11
Procedure for Effecting Reverse Stock Split	11
Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split	11
Vote Required for Approval	12
SECURITY OWNERSHIP	13
Security Ownership of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers	13
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners	14
PROCEDURAL MATTERS	15
Procedure for Submitting Stockholder Proposals	15
OTHER MATTERS	15
<b>APPENDIX A:</b> Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Time Warner Inc. (1-for-2 Reverse Stock Split)	A-1
APPENDIX B: Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Time Warner Inc. (1-for-3 Reverse Stock Split)	B-1

One Time Warner Center New York, NY 10019-8016

### PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is being furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of Time Warner Inc., a Delaware corporation ( Time Warner or the Company ), for use at a Special Meeting of the Company s stockholders (the Special Meeting ) to be held on Friday, January 16, 2009 at the Time Warner Conference Center in New York, New York, commencing at 8:30 a.m. (Eastern time), and at any adjournment or postponement, for the purpose of considering and acting upon the matter set forth in this Proxy Statement. Stockholders attending the Special Meeting in person should follow the directions provided on the back cover of the Notice of Special Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement.

Pursuant to the proxy rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, we have elected to provide the majority of our stockholders with access to our proxy materials over the Internet rather than in paper form. Accordingly, we are sending a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, rather than a printed copy of the proxy materials, to most of our stockholders of record as of November 20, 2008. We expect to mail the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to stockholders entitled to vote at the Special Meeting, as well as printed copies of the Proxy Statement and accompanying form of proxy to some stockholders, on or about December 3, 2008. For information about stockholders eligibility to vote at the Special Meeting, shares outstanding on the record date and the ways to submit and revoke a proxy, please see Question and Answers about Voting Your Time Warner Common Stock, in the following section of this Proxy Statement.

### **Recommendation of the Board of Directors**

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote **FOR** the approval of the Company s proposal to authorize the Board of Directors to effect, in its discretion, prior to December 31, 2009, a reverse stock split of the outstanding and treasury Common Stock of Time Warner at a reverse stock split ratio of either 1-for-2 or 1-for-3, as determined by the Board of Directors, and for the approval of a corresponding amendment to Time Warner s Restated Certificate of Incorporation in the form attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix A (to be filed if the Board determines a reverse stock split ratio of 1-for-2) or Appendix B (to be filed if the Board determines a reverse stock split ratio of 1-for-3) to effect the reverse stock split and to reduce proportionately the total number of shares of Common Stock and shares of Series Common Stock that Time Warner is authorized to issue, subject to the Board of Directors authority to abandon such amendment.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Special Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Friday, January 16, 2009: The Proxy Statement is available at www.timewarner.com/specialmeetingmaterials.

### **Submitting Your Proxy**

Time Warner stockholders should submit their proxy or voting instructions as soon as possible.

If you received a paper copy of the proxy material: If you are submitting your proxy by mail, please complete and return the proxy card. In order to assure that your proxy is received in time to be voted at the Special Meeting, the proxy card must be completed in accordance with the instructions on it and received prior to the Special Meeting. If you are submitting your proxy by telephone, follow the Vote by telephone instructions on the Electronic Voting Instructions section of the enclosed proxy card. If you are submitting your proxy by Internet, follow the Vote by

Internet instructions on the Electronic Voting Instructions section of the enclosed proxy card. In either case, in order to assure that your proxy is counted, you must submit it prior to 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on January 16, 2009. If your Time Warner Common Stock is held in street name, you should submit your proxy in accordance with the instructions on the voting instruction card as provided by the bank, brokerage firm or other nominee who holds Time Warner Common Stock on your behalf.

If you received a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials: Please submit your proxy via the Internet using the instructions included in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials.

1

### INFORMATION ABOUT THIS PROXY STATEMENT AND THE SPECIAL MEETING

### **Questions and Answers about Voting Your Time Warner Common Stock**

Why did I receive this Proxy Statement?

Time Warner is providing this Proxy Statement because Time Warner s Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy to vote at the Special Meeting on January 16, 2009. This Proxy Statement contains information about the proposal being voted on at the Special Meeting.

Time Warner has sent this Proxy Statement or a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to each person who is registered as a holder of its common stock, par value \$0.01 per share (the Time Warner Common Stock ), in its register of stockholders (such owners are often referred to as holders of record ) at the close of business on November 20, 2008, the record date for the Special Meeting.

Time Warner has requested that banks, brokerage firms and other nominees who hold Time Warner Common Stock on behalf of the owners of the Common Stock (such owners are often referred to as beneficial stockholders or street name holders) at the close of business on November 20, 2008, provide a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to those beneficial stockholders. Time Warner has agreed to pay the reasonable expenses of the banks, brokerage firms and other nominees for mailing these notices.

What is the purpose of the reverse stock split?

Following completion of the previously announced separation of Time Warner Cable from the Company, the market price and trading ranges for Time Warner Common Stock may be significantly lower than the current market price and trading ranges due to the fact that Time Warner will have distributed all of its shares in TWC to holders of Time Warner Common Stock.

The Board of Directors believes that implementing a reverse stock split is likely to increase the market price for the Time Warner Common Stock as fewer shares will be outstanding. The Board of Directors further believes that the increased market price of Time Warner Common Stock expected as a result of implementing the reverse stock split may improve marketability and liquidity of the Time Warner Common Stock and may encourage interest and trading in the Time Warner Common Stock.

Why did I receive a notice in the mail regarding the Internet availability of the proxy materials In accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, instead of mailing a

instead of a paper copy of the proxy materials?

printed copy of our proxy materials to all stockholders entitled to vote at the Special Meeting, we are furnishing the proxy materials to most of our stockholders via the Internet. If you received a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials by mail, you will not receive a printed copy of the proxy materials. Instead, the Notice of Internet Availability will instruct you as to how you may access and review the proxy materials and submit your proxy via the

2

#### **Table of Contents**

Internet. If you received a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials by mail and would like to receive a printed copy of the proxy materials, please follow the instructions included in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials for requesting printed materials.

Who is entitled to vote?

Only holders of record of Time Warner Common Stock at the close of business on November 20, 2008, the record date for the Special Meeting, are entitled to vote at the Special Meeting.

How many votes do I have?

Every holder of Time Warner Common Stock on the record date will be entitled to one vote per share on the matter presented at the Special Meeting. On November 20, 2008, there were 3,587,458,794 shares of Time Warner Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting.

What proposal is being presented at the Special Meeting?

Time Warner intends to present the following proposal for stockholder consideration and voting at the Special Meeting:

To authorize the Board of Directors to effect, in its discretion, a reverse stock split of Time Warner Common Stock, pursuant to which each 2 or 3 shares of Time Warner s outstanding and treasury Common Stock (to be determined by the Board of Directors in its discretion) would be combined into 1 share of such stock, and

To approve a corresponding amendment to the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect the reverse stock split and to reduce proportionately the total number of shares of Common Stock and shares of Series Common Stock that Time Warner is authorized to issue, subject to the Board of Directors authority to abandon such amendment.

Other than matters incident to the conduct of the Special Meeting, Time Warner does not know of any business or proposals to be considered at the Special Meeting other than that set forth in this Proxy Statement.

How do I attend the Special Meeting?

For admission to the Special Meeting, holders of record should register in advance by calling 866-940-8693. In addition, government-issued photo identification will be required to be presented. The Special Meeting will begin at 8:30 a.m. (Eastern time).

How do I vote?

If you are a holder of record, you can vote in the following ways:

If you received a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials:

**By Internet:** by submitting a proxy by following the instructions included in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials.

3

If you received a paper copy of the proxy materials:

By Telephone: by submitting a proxy by following the Vote by telephone instructions on the Electronic Voting Instructions section of the enclosed proxy card at any time up until 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on January 16, 2009.

By Internet: by submitting a proxy by following the Vote by Internet instructions on the Electronic Voting Instructions section of the enclosed proxy card at any time up until 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on January 16, 2009. Stockholders submitting their proxies or voting instructions via the Internet should understand that there may be costs associated with electronic access, such as usage charges from Internet access providers and telephone companies that would be borne by the stockholder.

**By Mail:** by marking, dating and signing your proxy card in accordance with the instructions on it and returning it by mail in the enclosed pre-addressed reply envelope. The proxy card must be received prior to the Special Meeting.

At the Special Meeting: If you are planning to attend the Special Meeting and wish to vote your Time Warner Common Stock in person, we will give you a ballot at the meeting.

Even if you plan to be present at the Special Meeting, we encourage you to vote your shares of Time Warner Common Stock by submitting your proxy or voting instructions.

What if I submit my proxy or voting instructions but do not indicate how I am voting?

If you sign and return your proxy card or voting instruction card but do not indicate instructions for voting, your Time Warner Common Stock will be voted **FOR** the reverse stock split and the corresponding amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

What if I do not submit my proxy or voting instructions by telephone, via the Internet or by mail?

Abstentions and broker non-votes, as well as failures to vote, will have the effect of a vote against the proposal, which requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding stock

entitled to vote. A broker non-vote occurs when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary voting power on that item and has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner. Broker non-votes and the shares with respect to which a stockholder abstains are included in determining whether a quorum is present at the Special Meeting.

4

May I change or revoke my proxy after I submit my proxy or voting instructions?

You may change your proxy in one of two ways at any time before it is exercised by:

Filing with the Corporate Secretary of the Company, at or before the taking of the vote at the Special Meeting, a written notice of revocation or a duly executed new proxy, in either case dated later than the prior proxy relating to the same shares; or

Attending the Special Meeting and voting in person (although attendance at the Special Meeting will not by itself revoke a proxy).

The written notice of revocation or subsequent proxy should be delivered to Time Warner Inc., One Time Warner Center, New York, NY 10019-8016, Attention: Corporate Secretary, or hand delivered to the Corporate Secretary, before the taking of the vote at the Special Meeting. To revoke a proxy previously submitted electronically through the Internet or by telephone, a stockholder may simply submit a new proxy at a later date before the taking of the vote at the Special Meeting, in which case the later submitted proxy will be recorded and the earlier proxy will be revoked.

What does it mean if I receive more than one Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or set of proxy materials?

I share the same address with another Time Warner stockholder. Why has our household only received one Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or set of proxy materials? It means you have multiple accounts at the transfer agent and/or with banks and stockbrokers. Please submit proxies or voting instructions for all of your Time Warner Common Stock.

The Securities and Exchange Commission s rules permit us to deliver a single Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or a single set of proxy materials to one address shared by two or more of our stockholders. This practice, known as householding, is intended to reduce the Company s printing and postage costs. We have delivered only one Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or one set of proxy materials to stockholders who hold their shares through a bank, broker or other holder of record and share a single address, unless we received contrary instructions from any stockholder at that address. However, any such street name holder residing at the same address who wishes to receive a separate copy of the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy materials may make such a request by contacting the bank, broker or other holder of record, or Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. at (800) 542-1061 or in writing at Broadridge, Householding Department, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717. Street name holders residing at the same address who

would like to request householding of Company materials may do so by contacting the bank, broker or other holder of record or Broadridge at the phone number or address listed above.

5

What constitutes a quorum?

The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the Time Warner Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum for the conduct of business.

What vote is required in order to approve the proposal?

The affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Time Warner Common Stock entitled to vote is required to authorize the Board of Directors to effect the reverse stock split and to approve the corresponding amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

How will voting on any other business be conducted?

Other than matters incident to the conduct of the Special Meeting, no business or proposals other than those set forth in this Proxy Statement are to be considered at the Special Meeting.

Who will bear the cost of solicitation?

Time Warner will bear all expenses of the solicitation, including the cost of preparing and mailing the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials and the proxy materials. In addition to solicitation by the use of the mail, directors, officers and employees of Time Warner may solicit proxies and voting instructions by telephone or other means of communication. Such directors, officers and employees will not be paid additional compensation but may be reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection with such solicitation. Time Warner has retained D.F. King & Co., Inc. at an estimated cost of \$25,000, plus reimbursement of expenses, to assist in its solicitation of proxies from brokers, nominees, institutions and individuals. Arrangements will also be made with custodians. nominees and fiduciaries for forwarding a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy materials, as applicable, to beneficial owners of shares held of record by such custodians, nominees and fiduciaries, and Time Warner will reimburse such custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred in connection therewith.

Who can help answer my questions about the proposal being presented at the Special Meeting?

If you have questions about the proposal, you should contact our proxy solicitor:

D. F. King & Co., Inc. 48 Wall Street, 22<sup>nd</sup> Floor New York, NY 10005 Phone: (212) 269-5550

Or Toll Free: (800) 769-4414

6

### THE PROPOSAL

The Company is asking stockholders to:

Authorize the Board of Directors to effect, in its discretion prior to December 31, 2009, a reverse stock split of the outstanding and treasury Common Stock of Time Warner at a reverse stock split ratio of either 1-for-2 or 1-for-3, as determined by the Board of Directors; and

Approve a corresponding amendment to the Company s Restated Certificate of Incorporation in the form attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix A (to be filed if the Board determines a reverse stock split ratio of 1-for-2) or Appendix B (to be filed if the Board determines a reverse stock split ratio of 1-for-3) to effect the reverse stock split and to reduce proportionately the total number of shares of Common Stock and shares of Series Common Stock that Time Warner is authorized to issue, subject to the Board of Directors authority to abandon such amendment.

If the stockholders approve this proposal, the Board of Directors would effect the reverse stock split and cause a Certificate of Amendment to the Company s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware only if the previously announced separation of Time Warner Cable Inc. from the Company occurs (as described below) and the Board of Directors determines that the reverse stock split would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. The Board of Directors may determine in its discretion not to effect any reverse stock split and not to file either form of amendment to the Company s Restated Certificate of Incorporation. No further action on the part of stockholders will be required to either implement or abandon the reverse stock split.

### **Background**

On May 20, 2008, Time Warner and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a Separation Agreement with Time Warner Cable Inc. (TWC) and certain of its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, following the completion of certain internal restructuring transactions, Time Warner will distribute all the issued and outstanding shares of TWC Common Stock then held by Time Warner to its stockholders by way of either (a) a pro rata dividend in a spin-off, (b) an exchange offer in a split-off or (c) a combination thereof (the Distribution). Time Warner has not yet made a decision as to the form of the Distribution. All of the transactions contemplated by the Separation Agreement, including the Distribution, are referred to collectively as the Separation Transaction.

After completing the proposed Separation Transaction, the market price and trading ranges for Time Warner Common Stock may be significantly lower than the current market price and trading ranges due to the fact that Time Warner will have distributed all of its shares in TWC to holders of Time Warner Common Stock.

As of November 20, 2008, the Company had 3,587,458,794 shares of Time Warner Common Stock issued and outstanding. The last sale price of the Time Warner Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on November 20, 2008, was \$7.07 and over the prior 52 weeks our stock price has ranged from \$7.00 to \$17.50.

### **Purpose of the Reverse Stock Split**

The Board of Directors believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to reduce the number of issued and outstanding shares through a reverse stock split implemented in connection with the previously announced Separation Transaction. Immediately following the completion of the reverse stock split, the number of

shares of Time Warner Common Stock issued and outstanding or held in treasury will be reduced proportionately based on the reverse stock split ratio of either 1-for-2 or 1-for-3, as determined by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors believes implementing a reverse stock split is likely to increase the market price for the Time Warner Common Stock as fewer shares will be outstanding. The Board of Directors further believes that the increased market price of Time Warner Common Stock expected as a result of implementing

7

### **Table of Contents**

the reverse stock split may improve marketability and liquidity of the Time Warner Common Stock and may encourage interest and trading in the Time Warner Common Stock.

For example, the Board of Directors believes that some institutional investors and investment funds may be reluctant to invest, and in some cases may be prohibited from investing, in lower-priced stocks and that brokerage firms may be reluctant to recommend lower-priced stocks to their clients. If the market price and trading ranges for Time Warner Common Stock were to be significantly lower following the Separation Transaction, the reverse stock split could increase the likelihood that the Time Warner Common Stock market price will stay at a level that would be viewed more favorably by potential investors. Further, brokerage commissions, as a percentage of the total transaction, tend to be higher for lower-priced stocks. As a result, certain investors may also be dissuaded from purchasing lower-priced stocks. A higher stock price after the reverse stock split may reduce this concern.

### **Board Discretion to Implement the Reverse Stock Split**

The Board of Directors expects to implement the reverse stock split at or near the time of the Distribution. While the results of the stockholder vote on this proposal will not affect the Board of Directors decision to proceed with the Separation Transaction, if the planned Separation Transaction does not occur, the Board of Directors will not implement the reverse stock split.

No further action on the part of stockholders will be required to either implement or abandon the reverse stock split. If the proposal is approved by stockholders and the Board of Directors determines to implement the reverse stock split, Time Warner would communicate to the public, prior to the effective date of the reverse stock split, additional details regarding the reverse stock split (including the final reverse stock split ratio, as determined by the Board of Directors). The Board of Directors reserves its right to elect not to proceed with the reverse stock split if it determines, in its sole discretion, that the proposal is no longer in the best interests of the Company or its stockholders.

### Certain Risks Associated with the Reverse Stock Split

There can be no assurance that following the reverse stock split the market price of Time Warner Common Stock will increase in proportion to the reduction in the number of shares of Time Warner Common Stock issued and outstanding before the proposed reverse stock split. The total market capitalization of Time Warner Common Stock after the proposed reverse stock split may be lower than the total market capitalization before the proposed reverse stock split for reasons unrelated to the reverse stock split.

### Impact of the Proposed Reverse Stock Split If Implemented

The reverse stock split would affect all of Time Warner s stockholders uniformly and would not affect any stockholder s percentage ownership interests or proportionate voting power, except to the extent that the reverse stock split could result in any of Time Warner s stockholders receiving cash in lieu of a fractional share. As described below, stockholders otherwise entitled to fractional shares as a result of the reverse stock split will receive cash payments in lieu of such fractional shares. These cash payments will reduce the number of post-reverse stock split stockholders to the extent there are presently stockholders who would otherwise receive less than one share of Time Warner Common Stock after the reverse stock split. The other principal effects of the reverse stock split will be that:

the number of issued and outstanding and treasury shares of Time Warner Common Stock will be reduced proportionately based on the final reverse stock split ratio of either 1-for-2 or 1-for-3, as determined by the Board of Directors;

the number of authorized shares of Time Warner Common Stock will be reduced proportionately based on the final reverse stock split ratio;

the number of authorized shares of Time Warner Series Common Stock will be reduced proportionately based on the final reverse stock split ratio;

8

#### **Table of Contents**

based on the final reverse stock split ratio, the per share exercise price of all outstanding option awards will be increased proportionately and the number of shares of Time Warner Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all outstanding option awards and the vesting of all unvested stock units (including restricted stock units and performance stock units) will be reduced proportionately. These adjustments will result in approximately the same aggregate exercise price being required to be paid for all outstanding option awards upon exercise, although the aggregate number of shares issuable upon the exercise of such option awards will be reduced proportionately following the reverse stock split;

the number of shares reserved for issuance and any maximum number of shares with respect to which equity awards may be granted to any participant under the Company s equity-based compensation plans will be reduced proportionately based on the final reverse stock split ratio; and

in addition, the reverse stock split will likely increase the number of stockholders who own odd lots (less than 100 shares). Stockholders who hold odd lots may experience an increase in the cost of selling their shares and may have greater difficulty in executing sales.

Although the number of outstanding shares of Time Warner Common Stock would decrease following the proposed reverse stock split, the Board of Directors does not intend for the reverse stock split to be the first step in a going private transaction within the meaning of Rule 13e-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

### **Fractional Shares**

Stockholders will not receive fractional post-reverse stock split shares in connection with the reverse stock split. Instead, Time Warner will pay to each registered stockholder, in cash, the value of any fractional share interest in Time Warner Common Stock arising from the reverse stock split. Those registered stockholders who hold their shares of Time Warner Common Stock in certificate form will receive cash payment for their fractional interest, if applicable, following the surrender of their pre-reverse stock split stock certificates for post-reverse stock split shares. The cash payment will equal the fraction of shares to which the stockholder would otherwise be entitled, multiplied by the volume weighted average price of Time Warner Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape on the effective date of the reverse stock split. This cash payment may be subject to applicable U.S. federal, state and local income tax.

No transaction costs will be assessed on stockholders for the cash payment. Stockholders will not be entitled to receive interest for the period of time between the effective date of the reverse stock split and the date payment is made for their fractional share interest in Time Warner Common Stock. You should also be aware that, under the escheat laws of certain jurisdictions, sums due for fractional interests that are not timely claimed after the funds are made available may be required to be paid to the designated agent for each such jurisdiction. Thereafter, stockholders otherwise entitled to receive such funds may have to obtain the funds directly from the state to which they were paid.

If you believe that you may not hold sufficient shares of Time Warner Common Stock at the effective date of the reverse stock split to receive at least one share in the reverse stock split and you want to continue to hold Time Warner Common Stock after the split, you may do so by either:

purchasing a sufficient number of shares of Time Warner Common Stock; or

if you have shares of Time Warner Common Stock in more than one account, consolidating your accounts.

so that in each case you hold a number of shares of Time Warner Common Stock in your account prior to the reverse stock split that would entitle you to receive at least one share of Time Warner Common Stock on a post-reverse stock split basis. Shares of Common Stock held in registered form (that is, stock held by you in your own name in Time Warner's stock register records maintained by our transfer agent) and stock held in street name (that is, stock held by you through a bank, broker or other nominee) for the same investor will be considered held in separate accounts and will not be aggregated when effecting the reverse stock split.

9

### Effect on Registered and Beneficial Stockholders

Upon the reverse stock split, we intend to treat stockholders holding shares of Time Warner Common Stock in street name (that is, held through a bank, broker or other nominee) in the same manner as registered stockholders whose shares of Time Warner Common Stock are registered in their names. Banks, brokers or other nominees will be instructed to effect the reverse stock split for their beneficial holders holding shares of Time Warner Common Stock in street name; however, these banks, brokers or other nominees may apply their own specific procedures for processing the reverse stock split. If you hold your shares of Time Warner Common Stock with a bank, broker or other nominee, and if you have any questions in this regard, we encourage you to contact your nominee.

### Effect on Registered Book-Entry Stockholders

The Company s registered stockholders may hold some or all of their shares electronically in book-entry form. These stockholders will not have stock certificates evidencing their ownership of Time Warner Common Stock. They are, however, provided with a statement reflecting the number of shares of Time Warner Common Stock registered in their accounts.

If you hold registered shares of Time Warner Common Stock in a book-entry form, you do not need to take any action to receive your post-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock in registered book-entry form or your cash payment in lieu of any fractional interest, if applicable.

If you are entitled to post-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock, a transaction statement will automatically be sent to your address of record as soon as practicable after the effective date of the reverse stock split indicating the number of shares of Time Warner Common Stock you hold

If you are entitled to a payment in lieu of any fractional interest, a check will be mailed to you at your registered address as soon as practicable after the effective date of the reverse stock split. By signing and cashing this check, you will warrant that you owned the shares of Time Warner Common Stock for which you received a cash payment. See Fractional Shares above for additional information.

### **Effect on Registered Certificated Shares**

Some registered stockholders hold their shares of Time Warner Common Stock in certificate form or a combination of certificate and book-entry form. If any of your shares of Time Warner Common Stock are held in certificate form, you will receive a transmittal letter from the Company s transfer agent as soon as practicable after the effective date of the reverse stock split. The transmittal letter will be accompanied by instructions specifying how you can exchange your certificate representing the pre-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock for a statement of holding, together with any payment of cash in lieu of fractional shares to which you are entitled. When you submit your certificate representing the pre-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock, your post-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock will be held electronically in book-entry form. This means that, instead of receiving a new stock certificate, you will receive a statement of holding that indicates the number of post-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock you own in book-entry form. Time Warner will no longer issue physical stock certificates unless you make a specific request for a share certificate representing your post-reverse stock split ownership interest.

Beginning on the effective date of the reverse stock split, each certificate representing pre-reverse stock split shares will be deemed for all corporate purposes to evidence ownership of post-reverse stock split shares. If you are entitled to a payment in lieu of any fractional share interest, payment will be made as described above under Fractional Shares.

STOCKHOLDERS SHOULD NOT DESTROY ANY SHARE CERTIFICATE(S) AND SHOULD NOT SUBMIT ANY CERTIFICATE(S) UNTIL REQUESTED TO DO SO.

10

### **Accounting Consequences**

The par value per share of Time Warner Common Stock will remain unchanged at \$0.01 per share after the reverse stock split. As a result, on the effective date of the reverse stock split, the stated capital on the Company's balance sheet attributable to Time Warner Common Stock will be reduced proportionately based on the final reverse stock split ratio determined by the Board of Directors, from its present amount, and the additional paid-in capital account shall be credited with the amount by which the stated capital is reduced. The shares of Time Warner Common Stock held in treasury will also be reduced proportionately based on the final reverse stock split ratio determined by the Board of Directors. After the reverse stock split, net income or loss per share, and other per share amounts will be increased because there will be fewer shares of Time Warner Common Stock outstanding. In future financial statements, net income or loss per share and other per share amounts for periods ending before the reverse stock split would be recast to give retroactive effect to the reverse stock split. As described above under Impact of the Proposed Reverse Stock Split If Implemented, the per share exercise price of outstanding option awards would increase proportionately, and the number of shares of Time Warner Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options and upon the vesting of unvested stock unit awards would decrease proportionately, in each case based on the final reverse stock ratio. The Company does not anticipate that any other accounting consequences would arise as a result of the reverse stock split.

### No Appraisal Rights

Stockholders will not have dissenters or appraisal rights under Delaware corporate law or under the Company s Restated Certificate of Incorporation in connection with the proposed reverse stock split.

### **Procedure for Effecting Reverse Stock Split**

If the stockholders approve the proposal and the Board of Directors decides to implement the reverse stock split, the reverse stock split will become effective at the time and on the date of the filing of, or at such later time as is specified in, the Certificate of Amendment to the Company s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which is referred to as the effective date of the reverse stock split. Beginning on the effective date of the reverse stock split, each certificate representing pre-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock will be deemed for all corporate purposes to evidence ownership of post-reverse stock split shares of Time Warner Common Stock.

### Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split

The following is a discussion of certain material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the reverse stock split. This discussion is included for general information purposes only and does not purport to address all aspects of U.S. federal income tax law that may be relevant to stockholders in light of their particular circumstances. This discussion is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code ), and current Treasury regulations, administrative rulings and court decisions, all of which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis, and any such change could affect the continuing validity of this discussion.

All stockholders are urged to consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of the reverse stock split. This discussion does not address the tax consequences to stockholders that are subject to special tax rules, such as banks, insurance companies, regulated investment companies, personal holding companies, foreign entities, partnerships, nonresident alien individuals, broker-dealers and tax-exempt entities. This summary also assumes that the pre-reverse stock split shares were, and the post-reverse stock split shares will be, held as a capital asset, as defined in Section 1221 of the Code.

As used herein, the term U.S. holder means a holder that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes: a citizen or resident of the United States;